
Mrs J Wallace
Head of Paid Service
Torridge District Council
Riverbank House
Bideford
Devon
EX39 2QG

DX 53606 BIDEFORD
Tel : Bideford (01237) 428700

Date: 2 April 2019

MEETING OF EXTERNAL OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY 
COMMITTEE

On: Wednesday 10 April 2019 At: 6.00 pm

Venue: Town Hall - Bridge Street, Bideford, EX39 2HS

NOTICE OF MEETING

To: Councillor A Eastman (Chair)
Councillor P Pennington (Vice-Chair)
Councillors: R Boughton, A Boyle, T Johns, N Laws, I Parker and C Simmons

Non elected Members: P Topham

Members are requested to turn off their mobile phones for the duration of the meeting

AGENDA
PART I - (OPEN SESSION)

1.  Apologies For Absence 
To receive apologies for absence from the meeting.

2.  Minutes (Pages 3 - 10)
Confirmation of the Minutes of the meeting held on 20 February 2019.

3.  Public Participation 
15 minute period for public contributions

4.  Action List (Pages 11 - 12)

5.  Declaration Of Interests 
Members with interests should refer to the agenda item and describe the nature of their 
interest when the item is considered. 



- 2 -

6.  Agreement Of Agenda Items Part I and II 

7.  Urgent Matters Brought Forward With the Permission Of The Chair 

8.  1610 
To receive an update from 1610 Leisure Services.

9.  Report from Officer Group researching TBID 
To receive an update from the Planning & Economy Manager.

10.  Play Areas - outcome of call-in by Internal O&S 
To receive an update from the Planning & Economy Manger.

11.  Annual Report 
To receive a verbal update from the Head of Paid Service.

12.  Health, Wellbeing & Social Care (Standing item) 

13.  Consideration Of The Forward Plan (Pages 13 - 14)

14.  Exclusion Of The Public 
The Chair to move:- 
That the public be excluded from the remainder of the meeting because of the likely 
disclosure of exempt information as defined in Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Local 
Government Act 1972. 

Meeting Organiser: Mary Richards

Centre for Public Scrutiny – website            http://www.cfps.org.uk/

http://www.cfps.org.uk/


1

TORRIDGE DISTRICT COUNCIL

EXTERNAL OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY MEETING

Town Hall - Bridge Street, Bideford, EX39 2HS

Wednesday, 20 February 2019 - 2.00 pm

PRESENT Councillor A Eastman (Chair)
Councillors P Pennington, R Boughton, A Boyle, N Laws and 
P Christie (In place of C Simmons)

Phillip Topham

ALSO PRESENT S Kearney - Planning & Economy Manager
M Richards - Democratic Services Officer
K Hewlett - Electoral and Democratic Services 

Officer
J Williams - Environmental Health & Community 

Safety Manager
Councillor Hackett - Lead Member for Health & Wellbeing
J Wafforne - Torrington Chamber of Trade
C Wapshott - Torrington Chamber of Trade
Councillor P Watson

The Chair wished to extend thanks to Councillor Boundy, further to her resignation, 
for her contribution to this Committee, both as a Committee Member and formerly 
as Lead Member for Health & Wellbeing.

67.   APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE 

Apologies for absence were received from Councillor Simmons.

68.   MINUTES 

It was proposed by Councillor Laws, seconded by Councillor Pennington and –

Resolved:

That the minutes of the meeting held on 9 January 2019 be agreed and signed as a 
correct record.

(Vote: For 5, Abstentions 2)

69.   ACTION LIST 

Minute 50 b) – North Devon Marketing Bureau

The Planning & Economy Manager advised the Committee that an internal officer

Page 3

Agenda Item 2



2

group had met to consider the practicality of developing Tourism Business 
Improvement Districts (TBID).  The group would like to involve the  Lead Member 
for the Economy in the ongoing discussions.

A report will be brought back to a future meeting of the External Overview & 
Scrutiny Committee for further consideration.

Minute 61 a) and b) - Impact Evaluation

It was noted that a follow up procedure had been implemented which appeared to 
be successful.

Councillor Pennington presented the Pre Meeting Protocol document and the 
amendments recommended by Mr Topham.

The importance of being able to question speakers was acknowledged.  
Furthermore, should any response require further research, something needed to 
be in place to ensure feedback was forthcoming.  It was agreed that any open 
questions, where a reply had been promised, should be added to the action list.

It was proposed by Councillor Pennington and seconded by Councillor Laws –

That:

The Pre Meeting Protocol document, including the amendments made by Mr 
Topham, be adopted.

(Vote: For - unanimous)

70.   PUBLIC PARTICIPATION 

There was no public participation.

71.   DECLARATION OF INTERESTS 

Members were reminded that declarations of interest should be made as and when 
the specific agenda item to which they related was under discussion.

Mr Topham declared an interest -  he is a member of a community group in Great 
Torrington which has a working relationship with the Chamber of Trade, but with no 
legal or financial entitlement.

72.   AGREEMENT OF AGENDA ITEMS PART I AND II 

There were no Part II items.

73.   URGENT MATTERS BROUGHT FORWARD WITH THE PERMISSION OF 
THE CHAIR 

There were no urgent matters brought forward.

Page 4



3

74.   TORRINGTON CHAMBER OF TRADE 

The Chair welcomed Catherine Wapshott and Jayne Wafforne who in turn thanked 
the Committee for the opportunity to address the meeting.

Catherine Wapshott is Chair of the Great Torrington Chamber of Trade and Jayne 
Wafforne is the Vice Chair and both are traders in the town.

Catherine gave a brief history of the Chamber of Trade, which had re-emerged in 
autumn 2017, with the first meeting being held in October 2017. She spoke about 
the events the Chamber of Trade had held and the challenges faced.  Trading was 
being made more difficult by issues such as:

 Parking – the disparity of parking fees between the 2 carparks led to 
confusion and the Chamber of Trade fully supported the request by the 
Great Torrington District Councillors that the Council introduce the same 
terms and conditions for both car parks.

Additionally, the Chamber of Trade would welcome the introduction of a 
long-stay area in South Street car park which could be used by traders and 
would release spaces nearer the town for visitors.

 The Pannier Market – There had been concerns about the lack of provision 
and poor quality of the markets.  Negotiations had taken place with Genesis 
and the Chamber had taken over the running of the markets in August 2018.  
At the end of March the overall responsibility for the Pannier market will 
revert to Torridge District Council, with the Chamber remaining as overseers 
of the markets.  Regeneration of the Pannier Market would ensure economic 
growth.

The Chamber of Trade worked with other groups in the town, supporting projects 
such as updating the town website, improving signage and Torrington in bloom.  
They also supported the Cavaliers and the heritage festival.  A recent request for 
financial support had been for a viewing platform for the disabled in South Street 
car park.

The Chamber meets every 4 – 6 weeks and membership costs £30 per annum and 
a membership drive is planned for 2019.  

The Chair will raise on-street parking issues with HATOC.

The Planning & Economy Manager responded on the issue of the car parks.  TDC 
reviews car parking annually and the last meeting had been at the end of October 
2018.

Equalisation of the parking arrangements had been discussed extensively at recent 
committees and it had been proposed by the Great Torrington Councillors that this 
be reviewed.  It had been considered by the Community & Resources Committee 
who had dismissed the proposal for this year.  The decision had then been called in 

Page 5



4

by the Internal Overview & Scrutiny Committee and the recommendation had also 
been to dismiss the proposal but to concentrate on trying to assist the trading 
environment by promoting events.

The Planning & Economy Manager urged the Chamber of Trade to bring it forward 
again next year if there was still an issue.

A period of discussion and questions followed.  

The Planning & Economy Manager elaborated on the initiatives to promote footfall 
in the town centres, stating that this was in the business plan for economic 
development and there were 2 employees primarily tasked with this.

Mr Topham, who is Chair of the Great Torrington Futures Group, spoke about the 
group and its aims to support economic and social developments in the Great 
Torrington neighbourhood.

It was acknowledged that the retail market in Great Torrington was currently not 
very healthy, however, new shops had opened this year and the Chamber of Trade 
was feeling optimistic but recognised that they would have to work hard. 

Mr Topham provided background information on the company Genesis, which is an 
arm of the Great Torrington Community Trust.

The Chamber of Trade was invited to suggest ways they thought TDC could help 
and it was felt better signage on the outskirts would bring people into the town.  
DCC have said they will be carrying out a full review of the signage in around the 
town.  The Chamber of Trade was encouraged to explore the opportunities of 
signage on private land also.

The meeting discussed the history of the town and its assets and the consensus 
was that these needed to be emphasised, particularly through signage, making 
people aware of Great Torrington’s tourism driven unique selling point.  Great 
Torrington should build on its heritage.  The Chamber of Trade told Members about 
their collaboration with RHS Rosemoor and Dartington Glass and the aspirations 
for a cable car.  The Planning & Economy commented on the position with regard 
to the cable car project.  Torridge District Council had agreed a contribution towards 
a feasibility study but was waiting on Great Torrington Town Council to come up 
with funds for the remainder of the fee.

Action points arising:

 The Planning & Economy Manager to carry out a review of the signage in 
the Great Torrington car parks.

 To invite Great Torrington Community Trust to talk at a future meeting and to 
invite the Chamber of Trade to that meeting.

Page 6



5

75.   PLAY AREAS WORKING GROUP 

A proposal to Community & Resources had been made by the Play Areas Working 
Group that a budget be set aside the development of a play strategy.  The 
Community & Resources Committee resolved not to support the application for 
funds and dismissed the recommendation.  This decision was called in by 
Councillor Watson for consideration by the Internal Overview & Scrutiny 
Committee.  The call-in will be debated by Internal Overview & Scrutiny on 12 
March.  

The Planning & Economy Manager will report on the outcome at a future External 
Overview & Scrutiny Committee.

76.   HEALTH, WELLBEING & SOCIAL CARE (STANDING ITEM) 

The Lead Member for Health & Wellbeing commenced his update by informing the 
committee that the police precept had increased by £24 per annum, which equated 
to 41p a week for a band C property.  Devon and Cornwall is a low precepting 
authority, yet it is the biggest area force in the country and has a huge pension 
deficit.

Devon and Cornwall is the 7th safest area in the country but crime is increasing.  
Councillor Hackett alluded to an increase in poaching in certain parishes around 
the A30 corridor.

There will be one additional warranted officer for each of the 27 sectors within 
Devon & Cornwall.  However, the number of PCSOs is due to decrease.  

The Government pay each police force across the country 33p per head per day 
but in Devon & Cornwall that figure is only 26p per head per day. A further 
consideration is that during the summer months, there is an increase in the 
population of one third.

The proposed increase will still mean that there are 450 fewer police officers and 
150 fewer PCSOs than in 2010.

North Devon Healthcare Trust

Councillor Hackett briefed the meeting on a telephone conference he had had with 
Councillor Pennington and the Trust.  The North Devon Healthcare Trust had made 
progress and was no longer considered to be a challenged provider, although there 
were still challenges around workforce.  The Trust will place more consideration on 
what the community feels is best for the North Devon Healthcare Trust.  It was vital 
that the External Overview & Scrutiny Committee maintain adequate engagement 
with the Trust, whatever form it might take on in the future.

Action: Forward Plan – North Devon Healthcare Trust (Suzanne Tracey)

Councillor Pennington added that he had attended the North Devon Healthcare 
Trust AGM in September 2018 and it was clear that Suzanne Tracey was joint CEO 

Page 7



6

on both the North Devon Hospital and the Royal Exeter Hospital and that they 
wanted 2 individual organisations.  However, the most recent conversation would 
suggest they may go into partnership with somebody else.  It was unlikely that 
North Devon would stand alone in the future and this raised the concern about the 
remoteness of northern Devon.  

A deficit of £17/18m had been agreed with the regulators to address staffing and 
this was to be balanced by 2020.  The long term plan was that locum staff would be 
replaced by permanent staff which would decrease the deficit.

Parking had been discussed during the telephone conversation and reassurance 
had been given that additional staff parking had been made available which should 
release public spaces and reduce traffic in the run up to the hospital. 

A further goal was to reduce the waiting list for orthopaedic surgery to a maximum 
of 52 weeks by the end of March but this was dependent on the recruitment of 
surgeons.

An additional  £7m has been made available for mental health.

Holsworthy inpatient beds had also been discussed. The response had been that 
this was reliant on medical cover and might possibly see the reopening of beds in 
the autumn.  In the meantime, a tender had gone out for 3 beds in care homes.

Councillor Hackett read out a report from the Community Involvement Group.

Councillor Watson asked for more information about the tender, as some care 
homes had already put beds aside only to be told they had to go to tender.

Councillor Hackett was unable to comment as certain discussions within the Group 
had to remain confidential.  Furthermore, it was unfortunate that Councillor Watson, 
who had started a stakeholder group, was no longer involved in such discussion as 
the stakeholder group had been disbanded.  Councillor Hackett felt that District 
Councillors should be allowed to attend the Community Involvement Group 
meetings as they had been elected to represent the people.  Councillor Hackett 
suggested it might be an option that the External Overview & Scrutiny Committee 
write to the organisation to ask whether they could reconsider membership of the 
group to include whoever has been elected locally.

Councillor Pennington told the Committee that he had raised his concerns about 
Healthwatch.  With regard to the conversation about the Holsworthy Community 
Involvement Group, he felt the question was a wider question about transparency in 
general and how the public voice was heard within health care.  The Committee 
should be looking at the wider picture not just what is happening in the Holsworthy 
Community Involvement Group.  He recommended that Healthwatch be invited to a 
future meeting.

Councillor Hackett answered questions on staffing:

A great tranche of European staff had been recruited last year but he did not have

Page 8



7

the exact figures. 

Where hospitals had reduced departments, recruitment continued to be more 
difficult as staff were reluctant to join what was seen, in terms of what they were 
able to offer, to be a hospital in decline.  It was happening nationally not just at 
North Devon Hospital.  Mr Topham reported on the information relating to staffing 
which had been discussed at North Devon Council’s Overview & Scrutiny 
Committee meeting on health care.  It was difficult to recruit consultants to North 
Devon as there are not enough people to justify the provision of cutting edge and 
high tech specialist services.  

At the same meeting the message being conveyed was that going forward the 
principle for health service management was one of collaboration and partnerships. 
He asked Councillor Hackett to confirm with Suzanne Tracy whether the intention 
was for administrative collaboration as well as clinical collaboration.  Councillor 
Hackett replied that the current arrangement would expire in 6 months.  He felt the 
intention, on conclusion of that agreement, was for  a merger with the Royal Devon 
and Exeter Hospital.

Councillor Pennington recommended that the committee continue to monitor 
staffing and he urged that a stronger working link with North Devon Council be 
forged to consider health care.

77.   CONSIDERATION OF THE FORWARD PLAN 

The Planning & Economy Manager led the discussion on the Forward Plan.

Councillor Laws requested that an inspection of Torrington Pool be conducted by 
TDC staff before the next meeting, as the condition of the facility was poor.  

The Planning & Economy Manager agreed to have an inspection carried out.

Future items for the new Committee:

 Health Care / North Devon Healthcare Trust (Suzanne Tracey) / Healthwatch

 Great Torrington Community Development Trust (end of the summer)

 Agriculture 

Cllr Pennington declare an interest – he owns a farm.

Members discussed the many issues facing agriculture and felt a good point 
to kick off the debate would be the future of farming and the concerns of 
local farmers.  Future scrutiny could also include the knock on effect on 
secondary industries; valuers of agricultural land to speak on the usage of 
land; and a link with education.

Page 9



8

Action: A spokesperson from the NFU to be invited.  To be added to the 
Forward Plan if Councillor Whittaker had not already arranged for it to be 
added to the Full Council Forward Plan.

 Broadband -  The Planning & Economy Manager recommended an update 
by the Economic Development Officer. 

The meeting commenced at 2.00 pm and closed at 3.55 pm.

Chair: Date:

Page 10



ACTION LIST
Overview & Scrutiny (External) Committee – 20 February 2019

Minute
No.

Raised by Action Allocated To Date Contacted Completed

61a) Impact Evaluation – Cllr Pennington 
and Mr Topham to draw up 
proforma document for presenters.

Cllr Pennington 
and Mr Topham

Completed

20 Feb 19 Cllr Eastman To write a letter of thanks to Cllr 
Boundy

Dem Services Completed 
28/2/2019

69 a) Cllr 
Pennington

Pre Meeting Protocol doc to be to 
speakers who are invited to attend 
committee.

Dem Services Process being 
implemented

69 b) Cllr Christie To ensure any agreed feedback 
from speakers is forthcoming

Dem Services Process being 
implemented

74 a) Cllr Eastman To raise the issue of on street 
parking in Torrington at the next 
meeting of HATOC

Cllr Eastman HATOC meeting held 26 Feb. 
https://democracy.devon.gov.
uk/documents/g2927/Public%
20reports%20pack%2026th-
Feb-
2019%2010.30%20Torridge
%20Highways%20and%20Tr
affic%20Orders%20Committe
e.pdf?T=10
  

Completed

74 b) Cllr Laws To conduct a review of the signage 
in the Great Torrington car parks.

Planning & 
Economy 
Manager

27/02/19

74 Cllr Eastman To invite Great Torrington 
Community Trust to a future meeting 
and also Great Torrington Chamber 
of Trade to that meeting

Dem Services - 
Forward Plan

Pending date for Great 
Torrington Community Trust 
attendance.  Added to 
Forward Plan August 21.

P
age 11

A
genda Item

 4

https://democracy.devon.gov.uk/documents/g2927/Public%20reports%20pack%2026th-Feb-2019%2010.30%20Torridge%20Highways%20and%20Traffic%20Orders%20Committee.pdf?T=10
https://democracy.devon.gov.uk/documents/g2927/Public%20reports%20pack%2026th-Feb-2019%2010.30%20Torridge%20Highways%20and%20Traffic%20Orders%20Committee.pdf?T=10
https://democracy.devon.gov.uk/documents/g2927/Public%20reports%20pack%2026th-Feb-2019%2010.30%20Torridge%20Highways%20and%20Traffic%20Orders%20Committee.pdf?T=10
https://democracy.devon.gov.uk/documents/g2927/Public%20reports%20pack%2026th-Feb-2019%2010.30%20Torridge%20Highways%20and%20Traffic%20Orders%20Committee.pdf?T=10
https://democracy.devon.gov.uk/documents/g2927/Public%20reports%20pack%2026th-Feb-2019%2010.30%20Torridge%20Highways%20and%20Traffic%20Orders%20Committee.pdf?T=10
https://democracy.devon.gov.uk/documents/g2927/Public%20reports%20pack%2026th-Feb-2019%2010.30%20Torridge%20Highways%20and%20Traffic%20Orders%20Committee.pdf?T=10
https://democracy.devon.gov.uk/documents/g2927/Public%20reports%20pack%2026th-Feb-2019%2010.30%20Torridge%20Highways%20and%20Traffic%20Orders%20Committee.pdf?T=10
https://democracy.devon.gov.uk/documents/g2927/Public%20reports%20pack%2026th-Feb-2019%2010.30%20Torridge%20Highways%20and%20Traffic%20Orders%20Committee.pdf?T=10


75 Planning & 
Economy 
Manager

To report on the outcome of the 
Internal O&S consideration of the 
call in regarding a play areas 
strategy

Forward Plan Added to 
Forward Plan

76 a) Lead Member 
for Health & 
Wellbeing

To invite North Devon Healthcare 
Trust to a future meeting. (Suzanne 
Tracey)

Forward Plan Added to 
Forward Plan

76 b) Cllr 
Pennington

To invite Healthwatch to a future 
meeting

Forward Plan Added to 
Forward Plan

76 c) Mr Topham That clarification be sought from 
Suzanne Tracey about clinical and 
administrative collaboration.

Cllr Hackett 27/02/2019

76 d) Cllr 
Pennington

That the committee continue to 
monitor hospital staffing.

Forward Plan Added to 
Forward Plan

77 Cllr Laws To have an inspection of Torrington 
Pool conducted.

Planning & 
Economy 
Manager

27/02/19P
age 12



 EXTERNAL OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY COMMITTEE – FORWARD PLAN 2018/2019

Cycle 1 Cycle 2 Cycle 3 Cycle 4 Cycle 5 Cycle 6 Cycle 7 Cycle 8
23 May 2018 4 July 2018 22 Aug 2018 3 Oct 2018 14 Nov 2018 9 Jan 2019 20 Feb 2019 10 Apr 2019

2pm 6pm 2pm 6pm 2pm 6pm 2pm 6pm
Review of Forward 

Plan 
Clarity
1610

AONB

Burton Art Gallery - 
performance 

reporting format.

EA and 
DCC (Surface water 
draining/Flooding)

Play Area 
Strategy Scoping

Public Health
(LEP)

North Devon 
Marketing Bureau

6 Month Review of 
Impact Evaluation 

CCG Dr Womersley
(Holsworthy 
Community 

Involvement Group 
to be invited also)

Bideford Bay 
Chamber of 
Commerce

Torrington Chamber 
of Trade

Annual Report 
1610

Report from Officer 
Group researching 

TBID
Play Areas – 

outcome of call-in by 
Internal O&S

Standing Items Health, Wellbeing & 
Social Care

Health, Wellbeing & 
Social Care

Health, Wellbeing & 
Social Care

Health, Wellbeing & 
Social Care

Health, Wellbeing & 
Social Care

Health, Wellbeing & 
Social Care

Health, Wellbeing & 
Social Care

Health, Wellbeing & 
Social Care

New Working
Groups

External Grants
Working Group

External Grants
Working Group

External Grants
Working Group

External Grants
Working Group

External Grants
Working Group

External Grants
Working Group

Play Areas Working 
Group

Play Areas Working 
Group

Play Areas Working 
Group

Crime & Disorder 
Scrutiny Cttee
(annual item)

Joint NDC/TDC Council meetings re. water quality and the environment (bi-annual)
Organisations that are Grant Funded: North Devon+, Community Transport, Bideford Bike Show

UPCOMING ITEMS FOR FORWARD PLAN 

Prosperous and Sustainable Economy

1. Transport (buses, Link Road)
2. Education – Route 39
3. Housing (first time home buyers, planning policy, social housing, homelessness)
4. Employment (NEETS, Petroc)
5. Empty buildings – PLANNING POLICY
6. Industrial Units and local economy 
7. North Devon+/Leader5
8. The economy
9. Governance of Route 39

Stronger, Safer, Healthier Communities 

1. Green deal, fuel poverty
2. Ambulance cover, hospital beds, healthcare providers
3. Burton Art Gallery
4. Pharmacies
5. Leisure Services (1610) / Joint T&F update and separate scrutiny by External O&S
6. Reduction of PCSOs

P
age 13

A
genda Item

 13



Quality Environment

1. Southwest Water (overflow issues and Appledore/Westward Ho)
2. Water Quality – Sewerage
3. Housing developments and water run off
4. AONB / Biosphere
5. EA and DCC (Surface water draining/Flooding)

Effective and Customer Focused Council 

1. Mr Topham – review of O&S (Ext) liaison with external bodies/Impact Evaluation.

 

P
age 14


	Agenda
	2 Minutes
	4 Action List
	13 Consideration Of The Forward Plan

